CAPSULE SUMMARY
FOR
HIGGINS~KING HOUSE

14700 BERRYVILLE ROAD, DARNESTOWN

Montgomery County Survey Prefix & Site Number: M-24/23
Approximate Building Date: late 1840s - early 1850s
Town or Vicinity in which Resource is Located: Darnestown

Access: Private

The Higgins-King Farm, established ¢1840, is sited on a hill
at the end of a long driveway from Berryville Road. The house is
a mid-late nineteenth century rural vernacular frame farmhéuse
which ﬁﬁderwent extensive alterations in the early-mid twentieth
century. Outbuildings include a log smokehouse, corn crib, and‘
barn. 'The Higgins-King Farm is primarily significant for
representing the evolution of a farm from the mid-19th century
general farm to the early 20th century dairy and horse farm. The
farmhouse includes a mid-19th century log section, late 19th
century Victorian vernacular addition, and early 20th century

Classical Revival updating.




- Survey NOMZA( ~23
. "MARYLAND INVENTORY QE.os no.
Maryland Historical Trust “HISTORIC PROPERTIES

State Historic Sites Inventory Form | DOE __yes _ no

L

1. Name ¢indicate preferred name)

historic Higgins-King House

and/or common Fox-Afoot-Farm

2. Location

street & number 14700 Berryville Road —___not for publication
city,town Darnestown —__ vicinity of congressional district 8
state MD county Montgomery
3. Classification
¢ategory Ownership Status Present Use
—district —— public occupied ___ agriculture — — museum
building(s) )Q private —__ unoccupied —__ commercial ____ park
—_ structure —both —_work in progress — educational N private residence
site Public Acquisition Accessible ____entertainment — religious
-~ object ____in process ___yes: restricted —__government —__ scientific
- being considered ____yes: unrestricted — industrial transportation
~Anot applicable £ no ____ military ____other:

4- Owner Of Property (give names and mailing addresses of all owners)

name Katherine F. Magurn

14700 Berryville Road . (301)948-8321

street & number telephone no.:

city, town Germantown state and zip codeMP 20874

5. Location of Legal Description

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. = Montgomery County Courthouse liber3812
street & number 51 Monroe Street foliob84
city, town Rockville state MD

6. Representation in Existing nuistorical surveys

title Montgomery County Locational Atlas of Historic Sites
date 1976 . . —_federal ___state ___county ___local

pository for survey records M-NCPPC

city,town  siivyer Spring state MDD




7. Description | Survey No.

M. 24-23
Condition Check one Check one
excellent — deteriorated unaltered g original site
I gqod —_ruins 1 altered — moved date of move
— fair — unexposed

Prel?are both a summary paragraph and a general description of the resource and its
various elements as it exists today.

The Higgins-King Farm, established c¢1840, is sited on a hill at
the end of a long driveway from Berryville Road. The house is a
mid-late nineteenth century rural vernacular frame farmhouse which
underwent extensive alterations in the early-mid twentieth century.
Outbuildings include a log smokehouse, corn crib, and barn. The pic-
turesque, still-rural setting, including mature trees around the
house, rolling open fields, and woods, is important to the character
of the resource.

The main block, which faces north, is two stories tall and five
bays wide with a side gable roof and center cross gable. The roof,
covered with scalloped asphalt shingles, has return cornices at both
gable ends and an internal chimney at the west gable end. A wide
cornice is embellished with modillions and anchored on each end by
scroll brackets. Asbestos shingles cover the original wood siding.
Most windows are double glazed sash with six over six sandwich
muntins, plain surrounds, and louvered shutters. A single, six
light casement window is found at the east gable end. The foundation
1s Seneca sandstone.

The symmetrical north facade has a center entrance with a one
story, one bay, front gable, pedimented portico supported by paired
Doric columns. On the second level above the entrance is an under-
sized replacement window with sandwich muntins. The standard
replacement windows are located in the remaining four bays on the
first and second level. The center gable features a louvered semi-
circular window.

At the west end of the main block is a lower two-story, one-bay
wing which is obscured from the front by a large tree. Windows are
six over six and shuttered, the cornice is returned, and the roof is
raised-seam metal. ‘ ‘

Attached to the east end of the main block is a one story, two
bay, side gable wing with a return cornice and a louvered semicircu-
lar window at the east gable end. Windows are six over six sash and
shuttered, siding is clapboard, the roof is raised-seam metal, and
the foundation is concrete-block. The wing was constructed by the
current owner in the 1980s to replace a glassed-in porch.

A two story, three bay ell extends to the rear from the north-
east corner of the main block; it is asphalt shingled and the roof is
covered in scalloped asphalt shingles. There is a return cornice at
the south gable end with a louvered semicircular window and an inter-
nal chimney at the ridge line. At the south elevation of the ell, in

(Continued)
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the east-most bay, is an entrance with a small, bracketed, front ped-
imented portico. At the northwest corner of the ell, where it joins
the main block, there is a one story, shed roof addition with a
recessed entrance to the kitchen in the northmost bay.

At the rear of the west wing is a one story, one bay entrance
porch covered with a front gable, pedimented portico supported by
narrow, square posts. The porch has a Chippendale-style railing, is
reached by a short flight of steps, and faces a stone patio.

The earliest part of the structure may date from the late 1840s
or early 1850s, consisting of a two story house, with one room on
each floor and being the west two bays of the present five bay front
section of the house (now containing a living room and upper bed-
room). Beneath this section, originally, was a root cellar, and the
floor beams are of log construction. The two rooms have brick fire-
places, although the fireplace in the bedroom is no longer used.
Original hand-hewn shingles are visible in the attic.

About 1896 the house was enlarged with a center hall and dining
room to the east, and a rear kitchen ell was built with upstairs bed-
room. Though the massing of the front section conforms with the
earlier Federal style, the east section does not appear original
since there is no chimney. In addition this section contained a bay
window in the dining room, a full-width porch across the front, and
two over two sash windows, all features found in this area in the
last gquarter of the 19th century. Decorative brackets were added to
the eaves and the entire house was covered with German siding. On
the interior, the center hall stairway featured a solid walnut newel
post and stair rail.

The Kings, who acquired the property in 1937 and owned it for 20
vears, also undertook an extensive remodeling/renovation program.
They dug out the basement under the main block, added a furnace,
installed electricity and three bathrooms, built a sun porch on the
east end and a two-story wing on the west, and covered the siding
with asbestos shingles. They also removed the bay window and the
front porch and added new shutters.

Alterations undertaken by the present owner have been included
replacing the front windows installed in recent years by the present
owner, replacing the older two over two sash and enclosing the sun
porch on the east end to make it a family room.

There are a number of outbuildings which contribute to the
architectural character of this farmstead. Immediately to the rear

(Continued)
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(south) of the house is a front gable, one bay log smokehouse (Bldg.
#1) with a cedar shingle roof and clapboard siding. A board and bat-
ten door with metal strap hinges is centered in the north elevation.
At the rear is a single window with six over six sash.

To the west of the smokehouse is a two bay, gambrel roof dairy
barn (Bldg. #2) which has been converted for use as a garage. The
roof is raised seam metal, the north gable end is covered in asphalt
shingles, and the lower third of the barn is concrete-block. There
are two six over six sash windows at the north gable end, with shut-
ters. Entrance is from a large overhead garage door at the north
elevation and a smaller entrance in the north-most bay of the east
elevation. Attached at the northwest corner of the dairy barn and
extending to the north is a newer one story, two bay, front gable
garage with entrances from both the north and west elevations. The
roof is composition material, the siding is clapboard.

To the west of the barn is a small, one bay, front gable shed
with a patterned tin roof and board-and-batten siding (Bldg.#3). To
the west of the shed is a north-facing cow barn, now used for horses.
The three bay, front gable barn has board-and-batten siding and a
large overhead door and vented windows in the north elevation. A
former opening in the gable end is boarded over. There is a one
story, shed roof addition on the east elevation. The roof is
raised-seam metal and the foundation is Seneca sandstone. Attached to
the rear (south) end is a row of open, shed-roof stalls (Bldg.#4).

To the west of this barn is a three bay, front gable corn crib
with a small one bay, shed roof addition at the southeast corner. The
roof is corrugated metal and the siding is vertical plank. The doors
on either side of the gated center opening and in the addition have
metal strap hinges and the foundation is Seneca sandstone. There is
also a small door at the gable end, with metal strap hinges.

Attached to the north end of the corn-crib is a row of shed-roof
stalls and storage sheds (Bldg.#5).




8. Significance Survey No. y.24-23

Period Areas of Significance—-Check and justify below
___ prehistoric ___ archeology-prehistoric ____ community planning . landscape architecture____ religion
—__1400-1499 ___ archeology-historic ____conservation —law - science
7 1500-1599 ____ agriculture ~ —__economics — literature — sculpture
___1600-1699 ___ architecture _ education — military — social/
1700-1799 ___ art —engineering —_music humanitarian
I 1800-1899 ____ commerce ___exploration/settlement ___ philosophy —theater
— 1900- —___ communications —_industry — politics/government ____ transportation
____invention — other (specify)
Specific dates c.1896-1935 Builder/Architect
check: Applicable Criteria: _A _ B Acp _D
' and/or
Applicable Exception: _ A B _C _D _E _F _G
Level of Significance: _ national __ state __local

Prepare both a summary paragraph of significance and a geﬂeral statement of history and
\
support.

Summary: The Higgins-King Farm is primarily significant for
representing the evolution of a farm from the mid-19th century gener-
al farm to the early 20th century. The farmhouse includes a mid-19th
century log section, late 19th century Victorian vernacular addition,
and early 20th century Classical Revival updating.

This farm was originally owned by William Vinson, one of the
earliest settlers in the area. Acquired by 1820, the property in
~~ question was part of some 2600 acres he owned, most of which was
located on the other side of Seneca Creek, to the west. When Vinson
died in 1840, his second son, William Benjamin Vinson acquired 173
acres and established a farm. Vinson may have built the earliest
section of this house before he sold the property in 1853.1

Alexander C. H. Darne acquired the farm from Vinson the same
vear he inherited his parents farm, known as the Darne-Purdum Farm
(#24/20), located due east. Choosing to build a house with his new
wife, Mary Gassaway, on the latter property, Darne sold the farm in
guestion in 1855 to James H. Higgins for $2500. The relatively high
price of $14.45 per acre supports the premise that a house was
already constructed on the property. Higgins is shown residing at
this location on the 1865 Martenet and Bond map. At that time,
Berryville Road was not yet established. The north half of the road
was probably created by Higgins to access his farm from Darnestown
Road (Rt. 28).2

Like the Vinsons, the Higginses were also early settlers here,
having established themselves in the Sugarland area before 1787. The
farm remained in the family for the next 80 years. When James died
in 1868, his sons, John W., Otho, and Hilleary, inherited the proper-
ty. Hopkins Atlas of 1879 shows Hilleary Higgins living here. The
only brother to marry, Hilleary, with his wife Sarah, had a daughter
Virginia to whom the property descended after the three brothers died
during the 1890s. Virginia, and her husband H. Carroll Walters are

’ }
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(Continued)
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believed to have built the main section of the house about 1896,
incorporating the earlier structure. After the family began experi-
encing financial trouble during the 1920s, they took out a mortgage -
on the farm in 1929. '

In 1937, the property was purchased by Col. Ralph and Jane
Freeman King for about $3200. The Kings lived here for the next 22
years, specializing in cattle raising. The house was modernized in
the Classical Revival style. The Kings moved to Florida when Ralph
retired from the Marines in 1959, selling the farm to Harwood and
Susan Pointer who continued the farming tradition by tending beef
cattle.

In 1967, the majority of the farm was purchased by the State of
Maryland for inclusion in the newly created Seneca Creek Park.
Thirteen acres of land were left immediately surrounding the house
and outbuildings which were purchased by the present owner, Katherine
Magurn. Stalls were constructed and barns were converted to inhabit
horses.

The Higgins-King Farm is located in the National Register
Seneca Historic District, which was designated in 197&. It is
listed as a contributing resource which exemplifies a large farm-
house built around 1900 on a further division of relatives' tracts

of land.




9. Major Bibliographical References

Survey No §.24-23

See Attached Sheet
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10. Geographical Data
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Verbal boundary description and justification

List all states and counties for properties overlapping state or county boundaries

state code county code

state code county code

11. Form PrepatredBy =~ N
name/title Clare Lise Cavicchi

Organization M-NCPPC date Mav. 1994

street & number 8787 Georgia Avenue telephone (301) 495-4570

city or town Silver Spring state MD

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory
an Act of the Maryland Legislature to

was officially created by
be found in the Annotated

Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA, 1974 supplement.

The survey and inventory are being prepared for information and
record purposes only and do not constitute any infringement of

individual property rights.

return to: i i ustmmfﬂl}ﬁ'

Maryland 21401090%\/&5 MD 21032-2023

& 8147600
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Chain of Title*

by 1820 William Vinson pt. 2600a.
d. 1840

1840 William Benjamin Vinson, son 173a.
built 2 room 2 story log house (Deed Sts 2:29)

1853 Alex CH Darne (Deed JGH 2:142=143)

1855 James H. Higgins 173a $2,500.%$14.45/a
Died 1868 (Deed JGH 5:25b)

1868 Sons John W., Otho, Hilleary Higgins Deed JA 9:487 &
died 1890s (will JWS 1:272)

1890s Virginia Higgins Walters & H. Carroll Walters
House built c. 1896 '

1929 Mortgage (Mortgage PBR 369:330)

1937 Col. Ralph & Jane Freeman King $3200.
Cattle (Deeds CKW652:57 & 671:295)

1959 Harwood & Sue Pointer

Beef cattle (Deed 2669:LEOO)
1967 State Md. buys much of farm |
1968 Katherine Magurn - (Deed 3812:584)
* Source: Nancy Houston, Research Notes
Endnotes
1 Most of the historical information comes from the following
gsources: Nancy Houston, *“Fox-Afoot-Farm,” Little Acorn, June 1990;
Catherine Crawford, MHT Form, Resource # 24-23, August 1983.
2 MHT form #24-20. Martenet and Bond map 1865.

3 The name is spelled “Hillary Higgins” on the Hopkins Atlas.
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1938 View of Higgins-King Farmhouse
Source: Nancy Houston private collection
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Unpublished Sources

Cavicchi, Clare Lise. Maryland Historical Trust form, Resource
#24-20: Darne-Purdum Farm, June 1994.

——————————————————— . Site wvisit, Resource #24-23, July 1993.

Crawford, Catherine. Maryland Historical Trust Inventory Form,
Resource #24-23: Higgins-King Farm, August 1983.

Deeds, Land Records Office. See attached chain of title. (Montgomery
County Courthouse)

Historic Medley District, Inc. National Register of Historic Places
Inventory--Nomination Form, Seneca Historic District, by Dorothy
Muir, Mary Ann Kephart, and Austin Kiplinger. December 1975.

Houston, Nancy. Reprint of 1938 photograph of Higgins-King House.
Private photograph collection.

e . Research notes, Higgins-King Farm, Deed refer-
Robinson & Associates. Locational Atlas Historical Survey of 400
Resources, Survey Form, Summer 1989.

Snyderman, Lois. Architectural description draft, January 1994.

Wills. (Montgomery County Courthouse)

Published Sources

Boyd, T.H.S. The History of Montgomery County, Maryland, From Its
Earliest Settlement in 1650 to 1879. Baltimore: Regional Publishing
Co., 1968 (originally 1879).

Coleman, Margaret Marshall and Anne Dennis Lewis. Montgomery County:
A Pictorial History. Norfolk/vVirginia Beach: Donning Co., 1984.

Farquhar, Roger Brooke. 0ld Homes and History of Montgomery County,
Maryland. Washington, D.C.: Judd & Detweiler, Inc., 1962.

Hiebert, Ray Eldon and Richard K. MacMaster. A Grateful Remembrance:
the Story of Montgomery County, Maryland. Rockville, Maryland:
Montgomery County Government and the Montgomery County Historical
Society, 1976.
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Hopkins, G.M. Atlas of Fifteen Miles Around Washington Including the
County of Montgomery Maryland. Philadelphia: G.M. Hopkins, 1879.
(Library of Congress; Rockville Public Library)

————————————— . Altas of Metropolitan Washington. 1894. (Library of
Congress; Rockville Public Library)

Hbuston, Nancy. “Darnestown in the Past: Fox-Afoot-Farm,” Little
Acorn. Greater Darnestown Civic Association (June 1990), 12-13.

Martenet, Simon J. Martenet and Bond’s Map of Montgomery County.
Baltimore: Simon J. Martenet, 1865. (Library of Congress)

.McConihe, Margo (Editor). History of Potomac. Potomac Almanac, 1970.
Scharf, J. Thomas. History of Western Maryland. 1879.

Sween, Jane Chinn. “Darnestown as it Was,” in The Montgomery County
Story, February 1982.

————————————————— . Montgomery County: Two Centuries of Change.
Woodland Hills, Cal: Windsor Publications, Inc., 1984.
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CONDITION (Check One) {Check Ona)
m Altered ] Uncltered 1 Moved % Originel Site

DESCRIBE THE PREJENT 2 4D QRIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The house is a two story, frame structure with a

five bay main (east) facade., The central doorway is

el.

flanked by 2/2 double hung sash. The boxed cornice has
small brackets. There is a central gable with a semi-

circular, louvered window. To the rear is a two story
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King House
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14700 Berryville Road

CITY OR TOWN:

Darnestown

COUNTY:

Montgomery

STATE
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M
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OWNERSHIP STATUS
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[ Distrietr 2 Building [ Public Public Acquisition: E Occupiad Yas:
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) Enrgrfainm§m 7 Museum [J Scientific

NER OF

OWNER’S NAME:

K. F. Magurn

STREET AND NUMBER:

i 14700 Berryville Road
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STATE:

Maryland

COURTHOUSE, REGISTRY OF DEEDS, ETC:

Montgomery County Courthouse
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Title Reference of Curr Deed (Book & Pg, #):
FEPRES

TITLE OF SURVYEY

None

DATE OF SURVEY: [ Federsl {3 State {3 County {7) Local
DEPOSITORY FOR SURVYEY RECORDS:

STREET AND NUMBER:

CITY OR TOWN: STATE:

25—~ 709




-

e bt 5

M:29-33

} (Check Ona)
7] Excellent @4 Gosd {3 Fair {3 Detesioratsd ] Ruins [ -Unexposad

CONDITION (Check One) _ (Check One)

ﬁAhemd 1 Unclrered {3 Moved @’\ Original Site

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT 2 4D ORIGINAL (I known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The ho-use_is a two story, .frame structure with a
five bay main (east) facade. 'I‘hé central doorway is
flanked by 2/2 double hung sash. The boxed cornice has
small brackets. There is a central gable with a semi-
circula:f, _louvereé window. To the rear is a two story

el.

3as
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INSTRUCTIONS

Kt

SEE

M43

[} Pre-Columbian
[ 15th Century

PERIOD (Check One or Mors as Appropriats)

{71 16th Contury
{1 17th Century

7] 18th Cantury {1 20th Century
K_ 19th Century

SPECIFIC DATE!S) (If Applicable and Known)

Abar iginal
] Prehistoric
{71 Historic

1 Agricuiture

{31 Architecture

[ Art

O Commerce

{3 Communications

{3 Conservation

AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Check One or More as Appropriats)

[ Education

[} Enginasaring

3 Industry

1 Invention

[ Lendscape
Architecture

[ Litel;a'uw

3 Military
) Music

00 009 go

Political ~ {3 Urbon Planning

Religion/Phi. 3 Other (Specity)
losophy ]

Science

Sculpture

Secial/Human-

itarign

Theatsr

Transportation

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

PS - TOR
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SEGGRAPH TR

LATITUDE AND LONGITUDE COORDINATES LATITUDE AND LONGITUDRE COORDINATES
DEFINING A RECTANGLE LOCATING THE PROPERTY O DEFINING THE CENTER POINT OF A PROPERTY

\ R — . OF LESS THAN TEN ACRES
GORNER LATITUDE LONGITUDE LATITUDE LONGITUDE

Degraes Minutes Seconds | Degrees Minutes Seconds Degrees Minutes Seconds Degreas Minutes Seconds
NW [~ 3 " [+3 » » [¢] ) - o ® .
NFE =} ' L] [} ’ ”
SE o v ” o » »
SW Q ’ » (4] ] »

APPROXIMATE ACREAGE OF NOMINATED PROPERTY:

EAcreage Justification:
H

NAME AND TITLE:

Christopher Owens, Park Historian

ORGANIZATION

M-NCPPC

DATE

22 May 74

STREET AND NUMBER:

8787 Georgia Avenue

STATE

Marvland

CITY OR TOWN:

Silver Spring

12

~4J5tate Liaison Officer Review: (Office Use Only)

Significance of this property is:
National [} State [] Local [}

Signature
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#Hod-3 3
NAME KNG HouSE

LOCATION  s¢7e0 gemeymcce s Seweeh, Md.
FACADE N
PHOTO TAKEN  s/ea/oy mownee







- s
NAME KINg Yous €

LOCATION  p¢me Beerpvue @i Sewecd, M

FACADE N

PHOTO TAKEN sz /a mowkee




